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Hi Andrew
 
Please see attached response.
 
Mitchell Bennett
Unit Head – Statutory Planning
D 02 4908 6806 | M 0428 164 837
NSW EPA logo

www.epa.nsw.gov.au   @NSW_EPA

The EPA acknowledges the traditional custodians 
of the land and waters where we work. As part of the
world’s oldest surviving culture, we pay our respect 
to Aboriginal elders past, present and emerging.

Report pollution and environmental 
incidents 131 555 or +61 2 9995 5555

 

From: Andrew Watson <Andrew.Watson@planning.nsw.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, 13 August 2021 8:31 AM
To: EPA Planning Matters Mailbox <planning.matters@epa.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Michelle Niles <Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au>
Subject: Notice of Exhibition - Penrith Lakes Employment Lands Subdivision and Works (DA 9876)
 

Attention: Jacinta Hanemann
Regional Manager Operations, Metropolitan Infrastructure
NSW Environment Protection Authority
 
-via email-
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DOC21/700152-2         27 August 2021 
 
 
 
Department Planning, Industry and Environment 
Place and Infrastructure  
 
Email: Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au 
 
Attention: Michelle Niles  
 
 
 
Dear Ms Niles 
 
Penrith Lakes Scheme (DA 9876) Employment Lands Subdivision and Works 
 
I am writing in reply to your request for comment on the above Development Application and 
supporting information that was received by the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) on 13 
August 2021.  
 
The EPA provides the following comments (Attachment A) for Department of Planning, Industry 
and Environment consideration. These comments relate to the following matters: 
 


• Noise  


• Water quality  


• Contaminated land management.  


• Waste and resource recovery 


• General Matters 
 
Should you require any further information, please contact Mr Paul Wearne (02) 4224 4100. 


Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
MITCHELL BENNETT 
Unit Head – Statutory Planning    
 
Att. 
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APPENDIX A 
  
Noise  
 
The proposal involves a 93-lot subdivision for the purposes of employment uses to support a range 
of light industrial uses that could produce multiple noise sources in each lot. The Noise Policy for 
Industry (NPfI) has a number of guidelines, including the concept of Noise Management Precincts 
(s. 2.8) and a process to derive amenity noise levels in areas near an existing or proposed cluster of 
industry (s 2.4.1). This information could be drawn on to develop a mechanism to ensure that the 
land is developed in a manner that minimises noise to adjoining or nearby sensitive receiver locations 
in a structured and equitable manner.    
 
Any construction noise should be planned and managed in accordance with the Interim construction 
noise guideline (DEC 2009) or if superseded with the updated draft Construction Noise Guideline.  
 
Water Quality 
 
The delivery of the Precinct provides an opportunity to help support key sustainability priorities and 
actions in the Western City District Plan including planning priorities to protect and improve the health 
and enjoyment of the District’s waterways (Planning Priority W12). For example, the supporting 
information states that poor water quality from the surrounding catchment poses a significant long-
term risk to the Penrith Lakes Scheme.  
 
The EPA promotes development that maintains or restores the community’s uses and values of 
waterways. Where these values are being achieved in a waterway, they should be protected; and 
where they are not being achieved, all activities should work towards their achievement over time. 
This should be a guiding principle informing the design of this Precinct.  
 
The submitted information does not provide details of expected water quality outcomes, but states 
that modelling has been based on generic per cent load reductions that are in the Penrith 
Development Control Plan (that is, Gross Pollutants 90 per cent, TSS 85 per cent, TP 60 per cent, 
TN 45 per cent).  
 
It is important that ambient water quality targets for the receiving waters are developed rather than 
applying generic per cent load reductions that have no reference to receiving water outcomes that 
support the NSW Water Quality and River Flow Objectives (NSW WQO). Furthermore, these generic 
targets do not reflect contemporary Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD) performance and may 
not deliver improvements in the health of local waterways.  
 
The District Plan include actions to improve the health of catchments and waterways through a risk-
based approach to managing the cumulative impacts of development. Implementation of this action 
is supported through application of the OEH/EPA Risk based Framework for Considering Waterway 
Health Outcomes in Strategic Land-use Planning Decisions (Risk-based Framework). The 
application of this framework for this proposal should be encouraged as it can explore strategies that 
can help deliver the community environmental values and uses for waterways set out in the NSW 
WQOs. 
 
It also appears that water quality treatment relies on discharge off-site to the southern wetland of the 
Penrith Lakes scheme. Responsibility for management of this water quality structure and information 
on its performance should be sought, as it appears the structure may have been designed to manage 
stormwater generated from the semi-rural environment, not potentially polluted stormwater from 
industrial activities. A clear understanding is needed of the expected treatment train for this proposal 
including the role of source controls. For example, new industrial development within the precinct 
may require higher levels of performance or the precinct stormwater system may need to be  
amplified to ensure protection of the integrity of the wetland to address risks associated with polluted 
stormwater from industrial sites.  
 



https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/17p0524-noise-policy-for-industry.pdf

Following%20a%20review%20of%20the%20Interim%20construction%20noise%20guideline%20(PDF%201.2MB),%20the%20EPA%20has%20prepared%20a%20Draft%20construction%20noise%20guideline%20(PDF%20647KB)%20to%20modernise%20and%20improve%20the%20guidelines.

Following%20a%20review%20of%20the%20Interim%20construction%20noise%20guideline%20(PDF%201.2MB),%20the%20EPA%20has%20prepared%20a%20Draft%20construction%20noise%20guideline%20(PDF%20647KB)%20to%20modernise%20and%20improve%20the%20guidelines.

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/noise/20p2281-draft-construction-noise-guideline.pdf?la=en&hash=08B7AFCA1EABA290F78D720722E14F1F239FE6F8

https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/ieo/

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/publications/water/risk-based-framework-waterway-health-strategic-land-use-planning-170205

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/publications/water/risk-based-framework-waterway-health-strategic-land-use-planning-170205
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As highlighted in the supporting information, WSUD should form an important design element of the 
precinct. WSUD can improve the water quality of waterways. The management of water should form 
an important element that underpins the planning of the precinct including built form and open/green 
space. The need for such an approach is likely to be exacerbated with climate change and urban 
heat. For example, the successful establishment of a street tree will be dependent on water and if 
appropriately designed, a street tree pit can also provide water quality improvement to stormwater.  
 
The establishment of the Business Park also provides an opportunity to explore the delivery of 
integrated water cycle management (IWCM) solutions. This should be an important sustainability 
outcome for the precinct where sustainable water supply, wastewater and stormwater management 
and reuse and recycling initiatives are encouraged and delivered where it is safe and practicable to 
do so and provides the best environmental outcome. Opportunities should also be explored in 
working collaboratively with Sydney Water as this is also a key outcome in their Western Sydney 
Regional Master Plan-Re-imagining water in Western Sydney Western Sydney. Advice should be 
sought on any capacity issues with the existing wastewater system, to ensure any changes in growth 
in response to the Business Park do not compromise the environmental performance of the system. 
 
Due to the extent of bulk earth works proposed for the site careful planning is needed to ensure the 
southern wetlands, Penrith Lakes and nearby waterways, including the Hawkesbury River, are 
protected during the construction phase. Guidelines including the Managing Urban Stormwater: Soils 
and construction - Volume 1 4th edition should be consulted. Any controls should be installed prior 
to any earthworks (including the stockpiling of soils) being undertaken at the site.  
 
The site is located next to the Hawkesbury River and is within a flood plain which will be extensively 
filled. It is important that any changes due to flooding behaviour are fully understood including 
increased risks of erosion. DPIE EES should be consulted on flooding related issues.     
 
Contaminated Land Management 
 
All investigation, remediation and validation works should be carried out in accordance with the 
guidelines made or approved by EPA under Section 105 of the Contaminated Land Management 
Act 1997. The following guidance, as relevant, should be considered by the consultants when 
assessing contamination at the site: 
 


• NSW EPA Sampling Design Guidelines 
www.epa.nsw.gov.au/resources/clm/95059sampgdlne.pdf 


• Guidelines for the NSW Site Auditor Scheme (3rd edition) 2017 
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/publications/contaminatedland/17p0269-guidelines-for-the-nsw-
site-auditor-scheme-third-edition 


• Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Land: Contaminated Land Guidelines, 2020 
https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/contaminated-land/20p2233-
consultants-reporting-on-contaminated-land-
guidelines.pdf?la=en&hash=EBB6758A2DE448534B6FDD5057D280523E423CC7  


• The National Environment Protection (assessment of contamination) Measures 2013 as 
amended; and 


  
The processes outlined in State Environmental Planning Policy 55 - Remediation of Land (SEPP55) 
must be followed in order to assess the suitability of the land and any remediation required in relation 
to the proposed use. 
 
The EPA does not make conclusion on the suitability of the site for any proposed development or 
subdivision proposal. Site auditors can provide planning authorities increased certainty regarding 
the suitability of a site for a specific use. For added confidence during subdivision of this land, it is 
recommended that a site auditor is engaged to prepare a Section A1 Site Audit Statement - or a 
Section A2 Site Audit Statement accompanied by an Environmental Management Plan, that certifies 
that the site is suitable for the proposed use. 
 



https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/research-and-publications/publications-search/managing-urban-stormwater-soils-and-construction-volume-1-4th-editon

https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/research-and-publications/publications-search/managing-urban-stormwater-soils-and-construction-volume-1-4th-editon

http://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/resources/clm/95059sampgdlne.pdf

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/publications/contaminatedland/17p0269-guidelines-for-the-nsw-site-auditor-scheme-third-edition

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/publications/contaminatedland/17p0269-guidelines-for-the-nsw-site-auditor-scheme-third-edition

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/contaminated-land/20p2233-consultants-reporting-on-contaminated-land-guidelines.pdf?la=en&hash=EBB6758A2DE448534B6FDD5057D280523E423CC7

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/contaminated-land/20p2233-consultants-reporting-on-contaminated-land-guidelines.pdf?la=en&hash=EBB6758A2DE448534B6FDD5057D280523E423CC7

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/contaminated-land/20p2233-consultants-reporting-on-contaminated-land-guidelines.pdf?la=en&hash=EBB6758A2DE448534B6FDD5057D280523E423CC7
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Waste and Resource Recovery 
 
The submitted information states that approximately 800,536 cubic metres of fill will be imported to 
the site.  It is important that any fill proposed to be imported and emplaced at the site must be Virgin 
Excavated Natural Materials (VENM) or Excavated Natura Material (ENM) or other soils that are 
permitted under a specific resource recovery order and exemption. However, any material received 
for this purpose must be validated by a suitably qualified independent person to demonstrate that it 
is VENM or ENM and meets the requirements of the relevant resource recovery order or exemption 
and is fit for its intended purpose. 
 
The delivery of the subdivision provides an opportunity to deliver circular economy approaches that 
underpin the recently released NSW Waste and Sustainable Materials Strategy 2041 and 
approaches in the Better Practice Guidelines for Waste Management and Recycling in Commercial 
and Industrial Facilities 
 
General Matters 
 
It is important that any development including construction activities are undertaken and delivered 
in a manner that satisfies the requirements of the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 
and any supporting regulations. In addition, the planning proposal should also be demonstrating that 
it satisfies the range of sustainability planning priorities and supporting actions in the Western City 
District Plan. Opportunities such as the embedding of design excellence processes to help deliver 
high levels of sustainability (including the setting of targets using sustainability rating tools) for 
industrial development should be explored. As BASIX does not currently apply to industrial buildings. 
This approach is currently being used to help guide industrial development in relation to the Western 
Sydney Aerotropolis.  
 



https://www.abc.net.au/radio/illawarra/live/

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/managewaste/120960-comm-ind.pdf

https://www.epa.nsw.gov.au/-/media/epa/corporate-site/resources/managewaste/120960-comm-ind.pdf
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		Mitchell Bennett











planning.matters@epa.nsw.gov.au
 
Dear Ms Hanemann,
 
The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment has received a Statement of Environmental
Effects (SEE) for the Penrith Lakes Employment Lands Subdivision and Works (DA 9876).
 
The Department invites you to advise on the proposal, including advise on recommended conditions
by Thursday 26 August 2021. The SEE will be publicly exhibited from Friday 13 August 2021 until
Thursday 26 August 2021.
 
The SEE and all relevant documents may be viewed on the Department’s website at:
http://www.majorprojects.planning.nsw.gov.au/index.pl?action=view_job&job_id=9876.
 
If you have any questions, please contact Michelle Niles on (02) 9274 6272 or via email at
Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au.
 
Kind regards
 
 
Andrew Watson
DA Coordinator

Key Sites & Regional Assessments | Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
T 02 8275 1645 | E Andrew.Watson@planning.nsw.gov.au
Level 17, 4 Parramatta Square, 12 Darcy Street | Locked Bag 5022 | Parramatta NSW 2150
www.dpie.nsw.gov.au

Our Vision: Together, we create thriving environments, communities and economies.
The Department of Planning, Industry and Environment acknowledges that it stands on Aboriginal land. We acknowledge the
traditional custodians of the land and we show our respect for elders past, present and emerging through thoughtful and
collaborative approaches to our work, seeking to demonstrate our ongoing commitment to providing places in which
Aboriginal people are included socially, culturally and economically.
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